INTERNATIONAL

COVENANT SERRAL
ON CIVIL AND " GGPRYC/SR.200

24 March 1980
Original: EBNGLISH

POLITICAL RIGHTS

HOMAN RIGHTS COMMITTEE
Ninth session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 200th MEETING

held at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Thursday, 20 March 1980, at 3 p.u.

Chairmans Sir Vincent EVANS

CONTENTS

Congsideration of reports submitted by States partics under article 40 of the

Covenant (continued)

This record is subjecct to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working languages. They should
be set forth in a memorandum and also incorporated in a copy of the reccord.  They
should be scnt within onc week of the date of this document to the Official Records
Bditing Section, room E.6108, Palais des Nations, Gencva.

Any corrections to the records of the meevings of this session will be
consolidated in a single corrigendur, Yo be issued shortly after the cnd of the
sesgion,

GE.80-11691




CCPR/C/SR.200
page 2

The meoeting was called to order 2% 3.20 D.il.

CONSIDERATION OF REPORTS SUEMITTED BY STATES PARTIES UNLER ARTICLE 40 OF THE
COVENANT: -(agenda iten 4) (continued)

Iraq (continucd) (CCPR/C/1/Ada.45)

1. Mr, LALLAH said that he wos particularly intercsted Yo know whether there were
any resbtrictions on freedom of thought in Irag and how extrome were the sanciions
in that arce, if any cxi sted. The fact that Iraq had incorporated the Covenant in

its legal systen sug t”d questiong concerning, inter alia, the procecdurce for
invoking tho Oovcnant 3 the nunber of cages in which the courts had nade specific

pronouncerients thoroon. A related question was whether the courts had made any
rulings in respect of differences of interpretation botween the provisions of the
Covenant and thosc of the Constitution and domestic legislation. Since it appeaxed
that Irvaq attached special importance to the Covenant, he wondered whother the
Government had any plans to organize mcctings to enable adminisirators and judges to
discuss ‘the various provisions of the Covenant.

2. He asked what impact, if any, cmergency neasures had on frccdom of thought, a
question all the more relevant as Iraq was still in the process of constitutional
evolution., As far as he know, a state of cmergency had been declarcd in Irag in
the latc 1950s and lifted in the early 1970s, before Iraq had become party to the
Covenant. He wonderced whether a de facto state of cniergency still existed and
whether therc were any neasurcs which could now be classificd as cnergency reasures
Press reports referring to certain provisions and to the existence of special courtu
in various parts of Iraqg to dcal with major political offcnces suggested that therce
were.

3,  Presumably, the "ucst serious crimes" referred to in article 6, paragraph 2,
of the Covenant would include not only crimes of violonce against individuals but
also attacks against the security of the State itsclf. The definition of crinmes
against Statc security was, however, a thorny problem. It would be useful to know
for what political offcences the death penaliy could be imposcd in Iraq and whother
the nomial rules for criminal offences werc also applicable in such caces.  The
section of the Iraqi report (CCPR/C/l/Add.45) concerning crticle 6, paragraph 2, of
the Covenant indicated that the death penalty had to be ratificd by the President
of the Republic by a ropublican decrec. He would like to know the nuriber of such
decrees issucd since Iraq had bocome party to the Covenant and the number of times
the death penalﬁy had beon inposed since then for political offences.

PR — .

4. He wondpro whothor 01tlzon were froe to o gqgo in political activity &nd to
subscribe to varying political ideologics without the risk of falling foul of sone
aspect of criminal law for which the death penalty could be inposed, He was also
anxious to know whether there were certain ninimum guaranices to ens surc that persons
brought before special courts, if such courts cxisted,; obtainecd fair trials. In
view of fhe large nwiber of ‘convictions based on-confessions, it wag.inportant to
cxamine whether in the pre-trial chage the accused was left helpless against the
powerful State machinery or whether his legal counsel was allowed to be present
during interrogations to secc that any confession wos ohtained by fair mcans. The
length of detention itself night be a mejor factor in producing o confession.

Other questions concorning smnccial courts were whether the judges were froe from
undue influence, how they were appointed, what their torms of fonure were and whether
they were answerablc to anyone.




.

CCPR/C/SR. 200
page 3

5. Artlcle 8,y paragraph ), of the Covenant prohlblted forced or compulsory labour.
He was pleased to note that there was no provmslon in Iraqi legislation that '
required anyone to perform such labour and that Iraq had signed conventions to that -
effect. There was, however, a relationship beétween forced labour and compulsory .
employment, and he was concerned about legal provisions limiting the conditions
under which certain categories of workers could stop work. He inquired whether

the youth ’cre,lm.nU schemes involved forced labour and whether section 364 of the '

Penal Code making public sexrvice employees liable, under certain conditions, to.
imprisonment and forced labour if they stopped work was applicable to judges.

‘6. Mr, GRAEFRATH said that the information provided concerning the recent

history and development of Iraq, its liberation from various kinds of oppression

and its struggle for independence had given him a good ingight into the progress -
made in the observance of human rights in Irag. The repoxrt referred to Iraq's
efforts to strike a proper balance between the rights of the individual and his
duties to others and to society as a whole, which in turn reflected an

understandlng of freedom far different from the absiract notions often encountered.-
There were countries where the enjoyment of human rights depended on the possession
of money and power and was therefore guaranteed only for the privileged élite,
contrary to the provisions of article 2, paragraph 1, of the Covenant. Iraq was
making a oommendable effort to avoid such pitfalls. :

7. He would like more information on the functioning of the "Law of the Leading
Party" referred to in Part One, section 1, of the report. It was not clear
whether the "Law for the Reformation of the Legal System", referred to in the same
section, would reform the system gradually or would immediately give effect to
newly establlahed rules and institutions. The report indicated that the provisions
of the Covenant had become part of domestic -legislation and could be invoked-before
tribunals and other specialized administrative bodies. 'He was interested to learn
about Irag's experience in that regard, particularly in cases of differences
between domes tlc law and the Covenant. According to the commentary on article 23,
paragraph 4y ‘a wife was requlred to accompany her husband at home or in travel.

The question was whether the courts would be in a position 0 rule in favour of

the Covenant 'if i% was invoked against that domestic provision. Again, there
appeared to be no specific provision in the Penal (ode making propaganda for war
punlsheble. There should be clear guarantees that the prov1s1ons of -the Covenant
would bo applicable in the domestic legal system, °

8. Additional information was required concerning the judicial system in Iraq.
Specifically, he wished to know who appointed the audyee, what qualifications were
required and whether women could become Judges, In Part One, section 3, of the
report, it’ was stated that the judicial system was built on the principle of a-
single, rather than dual, jurisdiction. - He wondered vhether that meant that
normally the administration acted under the supervision’ “of the courts. Purthermore,
the report did not indicate what types of disputes and what types of criminal cases
were excluded from the jurisdiction of civil and criminal courts rvespectively.

Nor did it give details about the competence of Shari'a courts, the relationship
betweéen Shari'a and general law, and the composition and competence of-the -
Revolutionary Court referred to in Part One, section 3, of the report. '




CCPR/C/SR.200
vage 4

9. It was at times difficult to reconcile the wording of provnalon described

in the report with the terms of the Covenant. Accordlng to the commentarj ‘on
article 6, paragraph 5, if a juvenile had not yet completed his fifteenth year

of age, he was defined as a "boy". That would appear to exclude girls. He had
already wefrrrcd to the requirement that a wife should accompany her husband

at home or in travel and wighed to know whether a reverse provision ex1st9&.

Similar questions arose in comnexion with the provisions concerning leorce,_where
it was:no} clear whether men and women had the same rights. . Por example, article 59
of the Personal Status Law, referred to in the commentary on article 24, paragranh 1,
suggested a distinction in the provisions for the maintenance of male and female
children. A sex~based distinction was also implied in the Iraqi Nationality Law
No. 43, according to which everyone born in Iragq cr abroad of an Iraqi father wag
considered an Iraqi. - He requested details on the results of measures to ensure

equal rightvs and duties for men and women in public office.

10. The inherent right to life referred to in article & of the Covenant covered
more than the deprivation of life by means of the death penalty. Also important
was information on action taken by the Iraqi Government to redu-e the infant
moxrtality rate,

11. In comnexion with article 10, paragraph 2, the report stated that the
provisions of the Prisons Administration Law No. 151 did not deal with accused
persons detained in vpolice stations or in places specially set aside for

detention. The precise nature of those special places of detention should be .
defined. In reference to paragraph 3, it was stated that excepting those who

had committed criminal offences against the safety of the State, the rights of the
people or the honour of allegiance to the Homeland, it was necessary to protect
offenders from the cruelty of punishment, The obvious question was why exception.
should be made for those offenders.

12, With reference to article 10, paragraph 3, of the Covenant, the Iraqi report
cited Revolutionary Command Council Decision No. 1059, according to which released
prisoners were to resume their previous jobs upon leaving prison. While agreeing
that it was a good idea to try to reintegrate ex-~prisoners into society, he
doubted whether it was always possible, or even desirable from the point of view
of the prisoner, to return him to his former environment and former employment. .
He requested information on the practical experience obtained in implementing the
deocision.

13, In its discussion relating to axticle 18, paragraphs 1 and 2 of the Covenant,
the report dealt with religious freedom but failed to mention freedom of thought
and conscience. He would like more information on those latter freedoums. Wlth
reference to paragraph 4 of the same artlole, the report discussed rellglous '
education in the;school curricula but did not say whether individuals who did not
wish to partlolpate in religious education were obliged to do so. In that
connexion, he noted that article 4 of the Constitution-stated that Islam was the
State religion, a statement whose practical oon»equences should be exnlalned to
the Committee, Did it mean, for instance, that Islam had a pr1v1leged 0081t10n
in Iraq over other religions?

.



OCPR/C/SR. 200
vage 5

14. With reference to article 23, paragraph 2; of the Covenant, the report
mentioned marriages whlch took place outside the courts. He would like more.
information on the various. methods of contracting marriage in Iraq. : :

15. The section of the veport dealing with article 25 of the Covenant made

very little mention of the Revolutionary Command Council, which seemed to be an
extremely important body in the State structure. He asked for more information
about the Council, in particular how its membership was chosen.and what its polltlcal
structure was. : : v

16. With reference to article 27 of the Covenant and the section of the report
dealing with the Kurdistan region, he noted that election to the Legislative Council
of that region wag by free and dlreot ballot but that members cf the Council .must be
able to read and write the Xurdish or Arabic language. Such a provision could be
discriminatory if illiteracy was a significant problem in the region. He requested
further information about the level of literacy in the region and asked whether
similar provisions -existed in the election laws in other regions of the country,.
Within the context of the Law of Autonomy for the Kurdistan region, he asked how and
by whom JudlClal courts in the region were constituted. '

17. Mr, OPSAHL expressed his appreciation of the detailed and carefully prepared
report submitted by the Government of Iraq. He noted that Iraq had ratified many
of the relevant international conventions in the field of human rights and had played
an active role in the work of the Commission on Human Rights. =~ It also appeared that
the Government had made great efforts and had achieved great success in improving the
domestic situation and the life of the people, both through the adoption-of an '
impressive reform programme and through the preservation of valuable traditions, -

18. Turning to Part One of the Iraqi report, dealing with the general legal framework
for the protection of human rights in Iraq, he noted the statement on page 5 that the
enjoyment of those rights was subjeet to the compatibility of such enjoyment with the
ideological principles and foundations of the political system; that rule was nct
compatible with the Covenant and could e used to apply harsh measures in contra-
vention of the Covenant. There were other areas of the report which suggested that
Irag's treatment of political dissent and political offences was not in full compliance
with the Covenant. It was stated in the section of the report dealing with :
article 10, paragraph 3, that, except for those who had committed criminal offences
against the safety of the State, the rights of the people or the honour of allegiance
to the Homeland, it was necessary to protect offenders from the cruelty of punishment..
The exclusion of such offenders was incompatible with the Covenant, since all offenders
should be granted equal protection. ' : Such matters were of special concern to the
Conmmittee because there had been reports of recent exeoutlons in Iraq for polltloal
offences. .

19. In connexion with the death penalty, he was concerped about the sontent and use
of article 200 of the Penal Code, which, as he understood it, K allowed the death
penalty to be imposed for certain non-~violent offences, such as double membership in
political parties, even lawful political parties. . He asked whether and how,

article 200 had been applied. Political activity in the army seemed also to be
punishable by the death penalty; he asked whether any offences in connexion with
such activities had been so punished. In view of cther reports received by the
Cormittee, he felt it necessary to ask whether persons had been arrested and punished
in recent years for participation in religious meetings. If those reports were
correct, he asked how the Iraqi Government could Justify such measures in view of its
obligations under the Joverant.



CCPR/C/SR;'éoo
page 6

20. With refercnce to. artlclo 22, paragraph 3, of the Covenant, the report stwtod .
that Iraq obgerved all the 'IIC Conventions, although. 1nion‘~t10n clscwhere,
suggested that Iraq had retified only a cert@¢n number of those Convenbions. 3:
~would like that point exnlained.

2l. The scction of thei report dealing UltL article 9 of the Covenant mentioned
only arrcst end defentien for crinminal.offences, whereas erticle 9 covercd all
deprivations of liberty. Many countries had, Lor instance; adninistrative
procedurcs and social ingtitubions which were authorized te dotain individuals on-
the grounds of physical or nental illness, drug or aleohol intoxicetion, vagrancy,
and so forth, He asked for infomation to be provided on dotention of that sort,
in particular on the mature of the laws which.zpplied, the authoritics who werc
competent, the grounds for uuch detention dnd tho -guerantees Drotecblng the
individuals  concerned. -

22. MT.~KOULISHEV'praised the Iraqd report for its detailed preparation in' o
compliance with the Comittee!s guidelines and cxpresscd his appreciation of the
importance which the Iraql Constitution.placed on the cconomic and social basis

of the State, which was a precondition for the enjoyment of civil and political
rights. Noting that the existing Constitution had been designated as "provisional",
he asked whother a pcrn,nent ingtrunent would be adopted -soon. L L

23, Wlth refcroncc to Part Onc of the Ira01 report, hc asked for further dctails on - -

the Law for the Refomation of the Legal System. It was not clear from the report
whether ithe Law established a procedure for reform or went on to cnact the new laws.
Slmllarly, nore “information would be useful on the Revolutionary Comnand Council,
especially with rcgard to its merbership, the role it played in the Government
and its relation to the "Leading Party". With reference to chapter 2 of the
Constitution, hc asked how the National Council was constituted, who designated the,
representatives of the.people and what powers the Council had. He had heard. that
a new law on the National Council was to -be enacted soon and asked if the Committee
could be told about the content of that law. The leégal and legislative system in-
Iraq, -as described in the.Constitution, ocenod unique and complex. He asked if
more - information could be provided about. the usual. procedurcs by which laws were

adopteds - Furthcrmore, it was not clear whethor the President of the Republic or the

Rcvolutlonary COﬁnﬁnd Council was the compe tent authority for the ratification of
treatics., : : : '

24, .Iraq was fore or -less unique in having introduced the Covenant dircctly into
its internal legislation; he wondercd what would happen if a treaty were - .
ratificd and introduced .into the internal legislation and a subsequent law was
adopted which contradicted that treaty. Statcs handled the probler of.
international rosponsibility in various ways and he would like to know how Iraq
resgolved the problem of contradictions which night exist between the Constitution
and other intermal lcgislation, on the onc hand, and treaties and othoer
internationgl cbligations, on the cother. More .inforxmation would be helpful on
renedics -and the recoursc procedurcs available, especially the administrative
procedures, in the hunan rights arca. . S : ' ’



CCPR/C /sﬁ .200
page 7

25. According to Part Onc of the Iraql report, both the Civil: thlgatlon Law

and the Criminal Procedural Law allowed for certain exceptions from normal
procedures, in that ccrtain cases were excluded from the competence of the

ordinary courts on the basis of special provisions and sent to- special courts.
It would be useful %o have morc lnfornatlon about those oxccptlons and. about the
cases dealt with by the Shari'a courts. Sinilarly, the rcferences to revolutionary
courts and excoptlonal nilitary courts required further explanation. In pariicular,
what laws served ‘as the basis for sentences passcd by those courts?

26, With rcference to article 20 of the Covenant, he asked whether there wa.s any
provision in the Iragi Penal Code for the punlohnent of offences involving war
. propaganda. - With rcference o article 22 of the Covenant, hc would like more
information on the role played by trade unions in the nanagcnent of enterpriscs and
the political life of the comntry. Tt was stoted in the scetion of the report
dealing with article 23, paragraph 4, of the Covenant that the law ensured
equality of rights and responsibilitics of both spouscs during marriage and in
divorce., He asked whoether the discussion on thosc matters in the report was a
closc paraphrase of legal provisions or simply a commentary on the goals sought

by legislation. The recport spoke in several places of the grounds for divorce

but the grounds for men and for women did not seem to be identical. 'He would like
sone explanation of the statement that a woman -ghould not be nmarried to a nan who
was unrelated to her child., It would also be valuable to have information on the
property relations in marriage and in divorce. The reference to the National

and Progressive Front in connexion with article 25 of the Covenant was vexy brlef .
and he requested fuller cxplanation of the nature of that body, as also of the'“
People'!s Councils, which did not appear to have a place in the Constitution.

With reference to article 27 of the Covenant, he requested more 1nfornatlon on the
size of the nminoritics existing in Iraq. '

27, Mr, TOMUSCHAT said that Iraq's report was cxemplary in that it gave a detailed
degeription of the legal provisions which corresponded to cach article of the
Covenant and sct forth the fundamental rights and frcedoms of the Iraqli people;

he wondercd whether the Iragi Governmont would consider publishing it so that
every citizen would be aware of hisg rights.

28, Iraq's political rdgine was unique in that there was a close interconnexion
betwcen the State machinery and the Ba'ath party; the report indicated. that
although the statute of the Ba'ath party had been promulgated as law, the
Executive had been instructed to obscrve the party'!s Political Report as a
programme in the performance of its duties. The report nentioned other political
parties but it was not altogether clear how many parties existed and what their
position was vis-a~vis the so-called Leading Party. It appearcd that there was no-
equality among the political parties and that the other partics were confined %o
an auxiliary function; the Covenant, however, not only provided for freedom of
associagtion, including tho freedon to form political partics, but set forth in
article 2, paragraph 1, a general prohibition of discrimination. That prohibition
was ruch broader than the corresponding formula in article 19 of Iraqg'!s Constitution
which made no mention of discrimination on grounds of political opinion. A '
distinction necded to be drawn; discrinination againgt the expression of
non-violent beliefs and convictions nust be prohibited, but it was a different
natter when the violent overthrow of a govermment was advocated or there was a
clear danger to national welfare, as indicated in article 20 of the Covenant.
Bearing in mind that distinction, the public expression of political ideas must
be free, for otherwise a really democratic system as presupposed in the Covenant
was not possible.




CCPR/C/SR.200
rage 8 ‘

29+ Iraq had chosen the method of directly incorporating the .provisions of the
Covenant into domestic law; he would like some examples of declglons whlch had
been taken ln appllcablon of the Covenant.

30, In connexion w1th article 3 of the Covenant, it seemed that great progress
had been made in iraq in achieving the same rights for women as for men, although
Irag was a country with long-standing patrlarohal traditions. The report

" indicated that all the main areas of discrimination had heen eliminated, but many
doubtful points remained. '

3L. In xelation to articles 7 and 10 of the Covenant, it had been rightly said

that it was not enough to prohibit torture and maltreatment; .article 2, paragraph 1,
of the Covenant provided that the rights recognized in the Govenant must be

ensured. In some cases a State could take thc position that nothlng needed to be
done until a complaint was mode about a violation of a right but torture and
maltreatment were of so serious a nature that a State must establish mechanisms

to prevent in advance any. infringement of the general prohibition. In other .
countries there were special mechanisms such as prison inspection boards that

were independent of State machinery and he wondered if there were any such
institutions in Irag. He asked to what awthorities a prisoner could apply,

whether there were specific methods of investigation and whether an 1nqulry”Was
auvtomatically carrled out on allegatlon° of torture or maltreatment.

32, The report stated in connexion w1th article 8, paragraph 3, that work ‘was a
"sacrpd duty"; he wondered what precise legal dutbies flowed from that”goneral
provision and whether the Iragi legislation provided that worlk should be given
to anyotie whom the authorities did not consider to be working in the manner
required in the Constitution. Perhaps the provision embodied a political goal
and had no direct legal effect,

3%, Ample information had been provided on the principle set foxrth in

article 9, paragraph 5, of the Covenant, but it referred only to cases of
miscarriage of justice; since the article also applied to instances in which

the responsible cofficer was not to blame, he asked what the position was'in
Iragi legislation and vhether, in such cases, an individual could claim |
compensation. In conmnexion with article 10, he asked whether Iraqi leglsla'blon .
included any rule prohibiting reliance on evidence which had been extorted by’
illegal means, specifically by terture, since that was an important safeguard in
ensuring the legal rules of due process. In relation to awticle 12, he asked
whether Iragl legislation Urovzded that an. Iraql cltlzen could be deprlved of hig
nationality and, if so, in what circumstances.

34. The report provided an impressive plcture of legal safeguards under domestic
legislation in connexion with article 14 and gave the impression that Irag fully
lived up to .the standards of the Covenant in that respect. In connexion with
paragraph 3 (f) of that article, the report did not specify whether the assistance
of an interpreter was provided free of charge to the accused. He asked vhether
the provisions of the Covenant would always take precedence over national law,

and. whether the guarantees set forth in the report applied to all proceedings,
even the proceedlngs in the Revolutionary Court.



CCPR/C/3R. 200 ‘
page 9 -

35. The information provided on article 17 needed to be amplified. There were some
limitations in article 23 of the Iraci Constitution and he asked in vwhat circumstances
the authorities were able to search private homes or investigate correspondence or
communi.cations. That information was needed in order to determine whether there was
a balance between State and individval interest in keeping with the requirements of
the Covenant. In relation to article 18 of the Covenant, article 25 of the

Iraqi Constitution seemed rather weak since it had a number of limitations. It
referred to violation of provisions of the Constitution. As article 4 of the
Constitution laid down that Islam was the State religion, he asked what was the

legal situation of other religions, Countries were entirely free to profess attachment
to a given religion, but that must not be to the detriment of other religious groups.
Under article 18 of the Covenant, -freedom to adopt a religion was an absolute right
which could not be restricted, but freedom %o manifest a belief could be restricted;
in order to be fully in harmony with the Covenant, Iracgi legislation needed to be
more specific on that point. : ‘ S

36,, Article 22 of the Covenant was clearly designed to confer rights which an

individual could exercise without any State interference; in Irag, howevexr, the opposite
seemed to be the case, since although an impressive number of unions had been

created by public statute, the laws of association restricted the right of association
and therefore required specific justification.

37. In connexion with article 27, it was laudable that Iragq had embarked on a

course of granting full autonomy to the Kurdistan regicn, after so many years of .
war and oppression. Sincerity and loyalty was needed on both sides, since Irag

must honour its commitments and allow the Kurdish population to preserve its identildy,
but at the same time the Iraqi Govermment could expect the Kurdish people to remain
loyal citizens of Irag. It was not easy to steer a middle.course and he hoped that
solutions to all the problems that arose woild be found through peaceful methods.

38. Mr, PRADO VAILEJO sdid. that the Iraqi report followed the general guidelines
the Committee had provided for the presentation of reports and described in detail
the legislative machinexy. whlrb existed in Trag to ensure the operation of the
Iragi laws.

39. 1% was indicated in Paxrt One, paragraph 2, of the report that the Covenant had
become part of domestic legislation; that was eminently satisfactory. The report also
referred to Iraq's support for the establishment of a new intermational economic

order and that was in line with the objectives of the third world in general.

It was equally encouraging that the report referred to the question of achieving
gsovereignty over national resources for the benefit of the people, since that was

also part of the third-world struggle. He agreed with other members of the

Committee that economic and social development was essential to the promotion of

civil and political rights.

40. The independence of the judiciary was fundamental to the guarantee of human
rights, but he had some doubts about the independence of the Iraqi courts. The
report referred to various types of courts and indicated that some of the courts
included representatives of the Govermnment, He asked how the independence and
integrity of the courts could be maintained when representatives of the Govermment
enforced laws and dispensed Jjustice. If they were to be respected and to dispense the
law properly, the courts must be independent and must take their decisions according




CCPR/C/SR. 200
page 10

to the dictates of conscience and law. He as ked how Iraq guaranteed the right of

. appeal.against verdlcts of the courts which individuals considered to be unjust

or illegal, particularly since the courts included representatives of. the.Government
who would act in accordance with official 1nterests.. ' o R

41, The report indicated that special oourts existed in Iraq in addition to.the
ordlnany civil and criminal courts; he asked how they overated, how they were ’
appointed, what powers they had and what an individual could do if he felt that a
verdict of a special court was unjust. It appeared. that the verdicts of the .

special courts were not subject to appeal and that those courts were made up of . .
military men who probably knew little or nothing about law and of representatives

of the Government who were llkoly to act on Government instructions.

’42., In connexion with the death penalty, the Iragi Penal Code provided that one of

the grounds for the penalty was the refusal of an individual to divulge. his

previous political activities; that did not seem just or consistent with the Covenant.
The report also referred to the existence of the death penalty for members of the
armed forces; he would like to know in what clroumstances it was applicable.

43. He asked whether there were any polltlcal prisoners in Iraq, s1ncc the
existence of political prisoners involved a number of legal aspects which the
Committee would have to congider.

44. The prohibition of torture was vexry clear under the Iragi Constitution and ’
laws; nevertheless, the report did not indicate whether. the use of torture in
investigating a crime was prohibited, what punishment’ ex1stcd for an invegtigator
who resorted to torture, what authoritics were involved and what the victim could
do in such circumstances. Moreover, the report referred only to the prohibition of
torture, but there were other aspects of the problem such as cruel and degrading:
treatment which must be condemned. He asked what steps had been taken to prevent
cruel and degrading treatment in the process of investigation.

45,. The report seemed to imply that persbns professing the official religion had
not only politicel but also social privilages, so that therc could apparently be
political and social discrimination. He asked for enlighterment on that point. ‘

The meeting rose at 6 p.m.




